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ENGLISH HERITAGE

Chief Planning Officer
Bassetlaw District Council

Queens Buildings Ref. : MPP23/ AA 32871/1
Potter Street

Worksop Date : 26th July 1999
Nottinghamshire

S80 2AH

MONUMENT NAME
DISTRICT

COUNTY

MONUMENT NUMBER

Dear Sir/Madam
ANCIENT MONUMENTS AND ARCHAEOLOGICAL AREAS ACT 1979, AS AMENDED

The above-named monument is already included in the Schedule compiled and
maintained by the Secretary of State under Section 1 of the Ancient Monuments
and Archaeological Areas Act 1979, as amended. I am requested to inform you
that the scheduled area of the monument has now been revised to that shown

on the enclosed map extract. The monument, as revised, has been included in
the Schedule. Please ensure that papers that refer to the former scheduled
area of this monument are destroyed.

Please amend your records accordingly.

Yours faithfully

Scheduling Jection
English Herftage

Encs: map extract, Schedule entry (where required)
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DEPARTMENT FOR CULTURE, MEDIA AND SPORT BATCH NUMBER: 10688
FILE REFERENCE: AA 32871/1

SCHEDULE ENTRY COPY

ENTRY IN THE SCHEDULE OF MONUMENTS COMPILED AND MAINTAINED BY THE SECRETARY OF
STATE UNDER SECTION 1 OF THE ANCIENT MONUMENTS AND ARCHAEOLOGICAL AREAS ACT
1979 AS AMENDED.

MONUMENT: Ringwork at Kingshaugh Farm

PARISH: DARLTON

DISTRICT: BASSETLAW

COUNTY : NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

NATIONAL MONUMENT NO: 29936

NATIONAL GRID REFERENCE(S): SK76507345

DESCRIPTION OF THE MONUMENT

The monument includes the earthwork and buried remains of Kingshaugh Camp, a
ringwork which surrounds the 17th century Kingshaugh House. The house itself
is a Grade II Listed Building which tradition places on the site of a hunting
lodge founded by King John. Kingshaugh Farm also sits within the ringwork. The
monument is situated in a meander of a stream which forms the northern
boundary of the area of protection.
The earliest reference to ‘Kingeshag’ is in pipe rolls dating to 1194 when it
is recorded that there was pasture worth ten shillings. In 1211, in the
accounts of Brian de Insula who was working for the king in the East Midlands,
there is a reference to the spending of five hundred and fifty pounds four
shillings and seven pence for building the king’s houses and enclosing the
park. Further work was carried out in 1212 and 1214. There is also the first
reference of ‘Kingeshawe’ being a castrum or fortified camp in 1214,
indicating that the earthworks were present by this date. A chapel was
recorded in 1215 and a thick wall within Kingshaugh House is said to be the
surviving remains of this. After this the property was given to various
knights who held it for the king but in state papers of 1604 it is recorded
that the manor left the king’s demesne and was bought by Augustine Earl.
Artefacts, including large quantities of Iron Age and Roman date, have been
recovered from the site and its surrounding area. This suggests that the area
had been an important foci of settlement for some considerable time, beginning
long before the earliest written references to the site.
The monument survives as a series of earthworks and buried remains. TIn the
eastern half of the monument a sub-circular area, measuring approximately
120m in diameter, is defined on its south and east side by a bank and
external ditch or moat which survives to a depth of up to 3m. On the north
side the bank is degraded but still survives as a low, wide feature and
provides a fairly steep slope down to the north. The stream provides a natural
defence on the north, north east and north west sections of the monument. On
the western side of the moated area, the bank and ditch have been lost beneath
modern farm buildings.
To the south of the sub-circular area the defence of the monument was further
(Continued ..)
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DESCRIPTION OF THE MONUMENT (Continued)

strengthened by a complex series of banks and ditches. On the south east side
a wide ditch is separated from the inner moat by a narrow corridor. This runs
in a southerly direction for approximately 40m before turning at right angles
and widening towards the west. A low bank flanks it on its southern side.

The wide ditch, to the south of the corridor and low bank, is ‘L’ shaped with
the shorter stretch running north to south and the longer section running to
the west for the full width of the monument. On the western side of the moated
area the bank and ditch lie beneath modern farm buildings. Where small scale
excavations for service trenches or other building works have been carried out
within the farm yard significant archaeological deposits have been uncovered,
indicating the level of survival beneath the ground surface. The buried
remains include an infilled section of ditch.

The short section of the ditch is the widest but tapers to a point at its
northern end where it provides access to the corridor. At its widest point,
the ditch contains a high, well defined ovoid mound which appears to have
provided additional defence to the corridor.

To the south of the ditch are the degraded remains of another bank and outer
ditch. These are curved in plan and provide an almost mirror image of the
curve in the stream which defines the northern boundary of the monument. Both
the eastern and western ends of the bank and ditch have been truncated, at the
western end by a modern farm track and at the eastern end by a field drain.
This bank and ditch are very slight when compared to the other earthworks.

All modern fences, gates, track surfaces and animal feeding troughs are
excluded from the scheduling, although the ground beneath these features is
included.

ASSESSMENT OF IMPORTANCE

Ringworks are medieval fortifications built and occupied from the late
Anglo—-Saxon period to the later 12th century. They comprised a small defended
area containing buildings which was surrounded or partly surrounded by a
substantial ditch and a bank surmounted by a timber palisade or, rarely, a
stone wall. Occasionally a more lightly defended embanked enclosure, the
bailey, adjoined the ringwork. Ringworks acted as strongholds for military
operations and in some cases as defended aristocratic or manorial settlements.
They are rare nationally with only 200 recorded examples and less than 60
with baileys. As such, and as one of a limited number and very restricted
range of Anglo-Saxon and Norman fortifications, ringworks are of particular
significance to our understanding of the period.

The earthwork remains of the ringwork known as Kingshaugh Camp are rare,

particularly well preserved and retain significant archaeological deposits.

The deposits at the bottom of the ditches, the construction material of the

banks and the buried land surface beneath the banks will all contain important

artefactual and environmental evidence. The earthworks and the historical and

archaeological documentation combine to provide a clear picture of the

ringwork and its social and economic position in the wider medieval landscape.
(Continued ..)
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MAP EXTRACT

The site of the monument is shown on the attached map extract.

SCHEDULING HISTORY

Monument included in the Schedule on 13th February 1952 as:
COUNTY/NUMBER: Nottinghamshire 36
NAME: Kingshaugh Camp

The reference of this monument is now:
NATIONAL MONUMENT NUMBER: 29936
NAME: Ringwork at Kingshaugh Farm

SCHEDULING REVISED ON 07th July 1999
AUTHORISED BY: Iain Newton

On behalf of the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport under
batch no: 10688
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